
  
Monday, June 28, 2010 

Council Office 
5:00 pm 
Agenda 

 

I.  Bottling Plant 

 

II.  Public Comment  

 

III.  Executive Session  

 

IV.   Agenda Review 

 

CITY COUNCIL 
 
 

Committee of the Whole 
 



 

 
MINUTES 

June 15, 2010 
5:00 P.M. 

 
COUNCIL MEMBERS PRESENT: 
 
S. Marmarou, D. Sterner, V. Spencer, M. Goodman‐Hinnershitz, F. Acosta 
   
OTHERS PRESENT: 
 
L. Kelleher, S. Katzenmoyer, C. Geffken, C. Younger, F. Denbowski, T. McMahon, C. 
Jones 
 
Mr. Spencer called the Committee of the Whole meeting to order at 5:04 p.m.   
 
I.  Fire Training Center 
 
The Administration requested delaying discussion of this issue. 
 
II. Recreation Commission 
 
Ms. Reed joined the meeting via telephone. 
 
Mr. Denbowski stated that the resolution before Council would allow the City to apply 
for a Peer to Peer Grant from PA DCNR.  He stated that this would be a joint project 
with the Reading School District.  He noted the positive strides made while working 
with the District on the recycling program and recreation is another area where 
cooperation would benefit both parties. 
 
Mr. Denbowski stated that the grant is available to help municipalities begin 

 

 

COMMITTEE of the WHOLE
 

CITY COUNCIL 
 



intergovernmental cooperation for recreation.  He stated that the District approved their 
resolution unanimously.  The study will take approximately 12 – 18 months and will 
review current programs and determine ways to increase both program and revenue 
opportunities. 
 
Mr. Denbowski stated that the City will not be abandoning recreation but seeking 
improved programming possibly through a Recreation Commission as a separate 501 
(c) 3. 
 
Otis Smith joined the meeting at this time. 
 
Mr. Denbowski explained the difficulty of accepting donations and finding additional 
funding sources for City run programs.  He stated the full amount of the grant is 
$10,000 with DCNR covering $9,000 of the cost and the City providing the 10% local 
match of $1000.  He noted that the results of the study will be non‐binding. 
 
Mr. Smith stated that he has supported this concept since learning of it at a State 
Recreation Seminar.  He noted that many municipalities have been using a separate 
Commission for many years and Reading is lagging behind.  He stated that a 
Commission would be a win‐win for Reading and the School District. 
 
Mr. Denbowski reiterated that the City would not stop funding recreation, or outsource 
it, even after the formation of a Commission the City would be involved as a main 
partner. 
 
Mr. Spencer stated that the District has agreed to the concept and that is a good start.  
He stated that recreation was one of many items discussed in past meetings between 
Council and School Board members.  He stated that the District feels very strongly 
about recreation.  He noted that this Commission has become an initiative in the Act 47 
Recovery Plan.  He suggested that the Administration speak with DCNR to see if they 
would be willing to waive the local match or contact the DCED to see if under Act 47 
the cost could be covered by the DCED. 
 
Ms. Goodman‐Hinnershitz thanked Mr. Smith and Mr. Denbowski for their work on 
this issue.  She questioned how this would fit into the update of the 10 Year Park and 
Open Space Plan.  Mr. Smith stated that this planning would fit well into the update as 
they are both long range plans.  Mr. Denbowski stated that the 10 Year Plan can guide 
the Commission and that the timing is excellent. 
 
Ms. Goodman‐Hinnershitz noted that she has requested discussion of utilization of 
parks at the next Public Works Committee meeting.  She stated that this may also be an 
issue to be addressed by the Commission.  Mr. Smith stated that there are still athletic 



associations who use City facilities.  He stated that their partnerships will make the 
Commission even stronger. 
 
Mr. Spencer stated that this resolution is part of the meeting’s consent agenda.  Ms. 
Goodman‐Hinnershitz requested taking separate action so that she can make comment. 
 
Mr. Smith commended Council and the Administration for their willingness to move 
this forward.  Mr. Spencer stated that the District should also be commended. 
 
Ms. Goodman‐Hinnershitz also thanked Mr. Spencer for keeping the communication 
open between the City and the District. 
 
Jim Washington, School Board member, arrived at this time.  He thanked the City for 
moving forward on the issue and stated that he will attend any meeting as necessary in 
regard to recreation.   
 
III. Agenda Review 
 
Council reviewed this evening’s agenda including: 
 
Amending the Appeal Process for Access to Public Records 
 
Mr. Younger stated that this amendment is necessary as State law requires that appeals 
be made directly to the State Office of Open Records. 
 
Transfer of ownership of land in Ontelaunee Township 
 
Mr. Younger stated that the land will transfer for $8500 per acre according to the 
appraised process. 
 
Mr. Spencer requested that the agreement include a no development clause.  Mr. 
Younger stated that he would add that to the agreement.   
 
Mr. Spencer questioned if this transfer was discussed with the Water Authority as this 
is close to the watershed.  Mr. Jones stated that this land is downstream from the lake 
and the dam breast.  He stated that all approvals will be needed if improvements are 
made to the land. 
 
Authorizing the Rezoning of Crestmont St and Arlington St 
 
Mr. Spencer questioned whether this should be an ordinance.  Ms. Kelleher explained 
that the resolution authorizes the City to proceed with the rezoning process as outlined 



in the MPC.  Mr. Younger stated that the actual zoning change will be in ordinance 
form. 
 
Council entered executive session to discuss personnel and pending litigation issues at 
5:33 pm.  They exited executive session at 6:15 pm. 
 
D. Wright, J. Scott, and B. Lowenstein joined the meeting at this time. 
 
Resolution reprogramming CDBG funds and authorizing a float loan for street paving 
 
Mr. Lowenstein explained that this would allow the City to borrow against unexpended 
HUD funds.  He stressed the need to spend CDBG funds quickly to meet the HUD 
timeliness test.  He stated the resolution would also allow reprogramming of 
unexpended funds from past years which have been discovered.  The monies would be 
re‐allocated in the 2012 budget. 
 
Mr. Acosta questioned waiting 30 days to identify projects.  Mr. Spencer explained the 
need to spend the funds quickly is caused by the tight HUD timelines. 
 
Mr. Spencer questioned how the City would use funding for a loan and pay itself back.  
Mr. Lowenstein explained that the stimulus funding would be used for paving projects 
as that funding must be spent very quickly.  He stated that it shows HUD that Reading 
is taking positive steps to spend the money down. 
 
Ms. Goodman‐Hinnershitz stated that this is a difficult concept to understand but is due 
to HUD funding guidelines. 
 
Mr. Lowenstein explained that it is borrowing from future years’ CDBG funding. 
 
Mr. Marmarou questioned the amount of the float loan.  Mr. Lowenstein and Mr. Jones 
stated that it was $1 million ‐ $1.2 million. 
 
Mr. Spencer reminded Council that there was a contract several years ago with Triad to 
find these unprogrammed funds and recommend ways to spend the amount down.  
Mr. Lowenstein stated that the CD Director will provide monthly reports to allow 
reprogramming on a consistent basis in the future. 
 
Mayor McMahon also suggested that the Auditor receive these reports to allow him to 
be involved and assist with monitoring and auditing.  He stated that most of the funds 
are from projects that are not completed. 
 
Mr. Wright also stated that many times projects are completed under budget which 



leaves funds for other projects. 
 
Mayor McMahon suggested the monthly CD report be given to the Mayor and 
Managing Director prior to Council meetings to allow sharing of information regularly. 
 
Mr. Jones stated that Mr. Robinson has been reminding him of the need to spend down 
funding on his projects in a timely manner. 
 
Mr. Acosta questioned the documents or budgets which show the unprogrammed 
funding.  Mr. Wright stated that CD has that documentation. 
 
Mr. Acosta expressed his discomfort voting on issues with incomplete information.  He 
stated that this is a large amount of money.  Mr. Lowenstein stated that there will be a 
full report next month.   
 
Mr. Spencer questioned the delay in spending if some of these monies date back to 2006.  
Mr. Lowenstein stated that not all funds were federal monies.  He stated that there are 
some unallocated funds. 
 
Mr. Acosta noted his concern at loaning money to oneself.  He stated that this is bad 
public relations and that he will not support the float loan without documentation. 
 
Mr. Spencer suggested amending the resolution to allow passage of the CDBG‐R 
funding for street paving and to address the float loan separately. 
 
Mayor McMahon reminded Council that Mr. Lowenstein is hired to make these 
recommendations to the City.   
 
Mr. Acosta noted his concern as no information has been shared.  He stated that 
background information is necessary prior to Council action.   
 
Mr. Spencer suggested that CD submit a resolution regarding the float loan separately 
at a future meeting. 
 
Mr. Sterner stated that the same conversation occurs repeatedly.  He stated that Council 
has been informed in the past about unprogrammed funds.  He stated that since no 
reports have been received recently he thought that the problem had been rectified.  Mr. 
Lowenstein stated that Mr. Robinson will now be reporting regularly. 
 
Ms. Goodman‐Hinnershitz explained that CDBG‐R funding needs to be spent quickly.  
She stated that there should always be projects ready to move forward when there are 
unprogrammed funds.   



 
BEDI grant for Goggleworks neighborhood 
 
Mr. Spencer questioned the geographic area this would cover.  Mr. Lowenstein stated 
that it would be the neighborhood around the Goggleworks to create an art district.  He 
stated that this is a logical extension of what has already been done in this 
neighborhood.  He stated his hope that it would assist in improving substandard 
housing.  He stated that properties will have studios on the ground level and artists 
would reside on the upper levels. 
 
Mr. Marmarou questioned the amount. Mr. Lowenstein stated that it is approximately 
$5 million and there is already a commitment from Oppenheimer for financing.  He 
stated that he is excited about this project. 
 
Mr. Spencer questioned if Council received any information on this project.  Council 
responded negatively.   
 
Mr. Spencer questioned if there was a map describing boundaries for this project.  Mr. 
Wright stated that it is hand drawn.  Ms. Kelleher made copies and distributed them to 
Council. 
 
Mr. Acosta again stated that he felt uninformed about this project and was not ready to 
take action.   
 
Ms. Goodman‐Hinnershitz again stated that action needed to be taken to meet the grant 
timelines.  Mr. Acosta stated his belief that timelines are not cause to come before 
Council unprepared. 
 
Mr. Spencer stated that the resolution is authorizing the application for the grant. 
 
Mr. Sterner stated that past Councils have discussed the basic concept. 
 
Mayor McMahon stated that this would also concentrate the rehabilitation in one 
geographic area of the City instead of scattering it.  Ms. Kelleher stated that this 
neighborhood is also the target neighborhood of the Blighted Property Review 
Committee.  Mr. Lowenstein stated that the Goggleworks and IMAX anchor the 
neighborhood. 
 
Mr. Spencer stated that the NSP grant has already been received.  He stated that this is 
the first time he’s seen a map of the area. 
 
Re‐enacting the Local Revitalization Tax Assistance Program in the City 



 
Mr. Scott encouraged Council to support the program. 
 
Mr. Spencer noted the need for Council to understand the full strategy of the program. 
 
The meeting adjourned at 7:00 pm. 
 

Respectfully 
Submitted 

Linda A. Kelleher, CMC 
City Clerk 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



COUNCIL BUSINESS 
 
Organization Meeting; Presiding Officer of Council. §1‐113 of the Codified Ordinances.   
The organization meeting of the Council shall be the first meeting in each year. At the 
organization meeting, Council shall elect a Vice President, and members of Council’s 
Standing Committees and other such officers as the Council may deem appropriate to 
serve a 2 year term. [Ord. 7‐2001] (Ord. 17‐1996, 6/24/1996, §2.03; as amended by Ord. 7‐
2001, 4/9/2001, §1) 
 
Meetings. §1‐114 of the Codified Ordinances.   
 
Public Notice. Provisions governing public notice of meetings shall be provided by 
Sunshine Act of 1986, P.L. 38, No. 84, as amended.  
 
Note: Council Staff prepares an annual meeting notice covering regular business meetings, 
work sessions and committee meetings for the new fiscal year.  Notices for Special Meetings, 
Public Hearings, and any other meetings where a majority of the body of Council is present are 
prepared by Council Staff and advertised on an as needed basis at least 24 hours before such 
meeting is held, in accordance with the Sunshine Act. 
 
Regular Meeting. Council shall hold a regular meeting at least twice each month in the 
evening on a day and place as the Council may prescribe by rule. 

 
Special Meetings. Special meetings may be called by the President of the Council or 
upon the written request of a majority of the members of the Council. A written notice 
shall be mailed or delivered to each Council member at least 24 hours before a special 
meeting is held. Special meetings may also be called by citizens’ petition as referenced 
in the Charter.  
 
Emergency Meetings. The Mayor may call a special meeting of Council for the purpose 
of taking action on an emergency and further, provided a quorum is present of Council 
as provided in the Charter. In the event, five council members determine that the 
emergency meeting is called by the Mayor; the meeting shall not be held and/or shall be 
adjourned without any action. 
 
Executive Sessions. The Council may hold executive sessions as permitted by law. No 
official action shall be taken by the Council on any matter in executive session as 
provided for by the Sunshine Act of 1986, P.L. 388, No. 84, as amended. 
 
Note: Executive Sessions may only be called for the following reasons: 
1. To discuss any matter involving the employment, appointment, termination of 
employment, terms and conditions of employment, evaluation of performance, promotion, 



or disciplinary action.  Executive sessions cannot occur during the appointment or 
selection of any person to fill a vacancy in a publicly elected office. 

2. To discuss matters related to collective bargaining agreements, labor relations and 
arbitrations. 

3. To consider the purchase or lease of property. 
4. To consult with an attorney or other advisor regarding ongoing litigation or with issues 
on which litigation is expected to be filed. 

5. To review or discuss business which, if conducted in public, would violate a lawful 
privilege or lead to the disclosure of information related to: investigations, litigation or 
violations of the law. 

 
Citizens Rights to Call a Special Meeting of City Council. §112 of the Charter. 
The qualified voters of the City of Reading, upon filing a signed petition with the City 
Clerk, may require the City Council to hold a special meeting. 
 
The petition filed with the City Clerk must contain the signatures and addresses of 200 
duly qualified voters of the City and the purpose for which the meeting is being called. 
Upon receipt of such petition and a 2 day review/certification period of the petition by 
the City Clerk, the President of City Council must convene the special meeting on an 
evening within 14 days of the certification. 
 
The public notification process will adhere to the special meetings provisions of this 
Charter. 
 
Citizensʹ Right to be Heard. §213 of the Charter. 
Public comment is permitted at the regular meetings of Council which occur on the 
second and fourth Mondays of each month and shall be the first order of business. 
Public comment is not permitted at the City Council work sessions or committee 
meetings.  
 
Note: Public Comment is divided into two components ‐ comment on agenda matters and 
comment on non‐agenda matters.  Comment on agenda matters is limited to 5 minutes at the 
beginning of the meeting and comment on non‐agenda matters is limited to 3 minutes at the end 
of the meeting.  Council may suspend the public speaking rules to allow all public comment at 
the beginning of the meeting.    
 
Citizens desiring to address the Council at its regular meetings may do so by registering 
with the City Clerk before the meeting is called to order by the President of Council or 
the presiding officer. Citizens desiring to address the Council at its special meeting may 
do so by registering with the City Clerk ½ hour before the meeting is called to order by 
the President of Council or the presiding officer. 
 



 

 


